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Department of General Services – City Procurement 

Addendum # 1 Citywide Document Management Services
RFP # 269-2019-090

To: All Prospective Companies

Date: June 11, 2020

Subject: Addendum # 1 – RFP # 269-2019-090 - Citywide Document Management Services
Please note the specification changes/modifications below for the RFP.

Item # Page # Section # Specification Modifications and Questions

1 7 1.6.6

Charlotte 
Business 
INClusion 
Program

Service Provider Question:
Please clarify the statement “the City will award 
multiple companies with at least two companies being 
certified MWSBEs”. Is it possible for non MWSBEs to 
win an award on their own? Would those vendors be 
required to include partners that are certified in order 
to be considered?

Answer:
The City will award multiple contracts for the Services 
described in the RFP, intending to include awards to 
at least 2 certified MWSBE Companies. Non-
MWSBEs could be awarded a contract. It is not 
required that they partner with a MWSBE certified 
company to be considered. If Companies wish to 
subcontract with certified firms, they are welcome to 
do so. It will depend on the number of responses 
received. 

2 11 2.3 Submission of 
Proposals

Service Provider Question: 
Can Companies submit their responses 
electronically? 

Answer: 
No, the City does not have an approved 
process/mechanism to accept electronic responses 
currently. The City will accept a secure digital 
signature, such as DocuSign or Adobe to meet the 
required “signed in ink” on the hard copy.

3 13 3.2 General Service 
Components

Service Provider Questions:
Are there any specific paper intensive workflows the 
City is trying to solve?

Does the City have a content repository? 
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Does the City have a strategy for storing digital 
content? 

Answers:
No, there are none.

The City does not have a central content repository. 
Departments use various tools to store digital content,
such as OnBase, SharePoint and Tyler Content 
Management (TCM). TCM is part of our enterprise 
financial system.

No, there is no central City policy or strategy currently.

4 13-15 3.3 Scanning Services

Service Provider Questions:
What is the estimated number of pick-ups per location 
per week or per month? 

What is the estimated volume of scanning projects 
that have taken place in the past 12 months?

What is the estimated number of images to be 
scanned?

Can Scanning Services be offered without web-based
access to the images?

Is it expected for the Company to upload the scanned 
images into OnBase? If not, how will the Department 
access their images?

Answers:
Numbers on the number pick-ups per location or 
number of projects are not available.

The volume of images to be scanned depends on the 
Department requesting the Services and is not 
available.

Yes, that is acceptable. Companies need to describe 
how they will offer these Services to the City. 

No, Companies will not be uploaded images into 
OnBase. The OnBase platform is not utilized citywide. 
Companies are expected to provide either a web base 
solution for the Department to access the images, or 
a flash drive or hard drive. 

5 15-17 3.4 Storage Services

Service Provider Questions:
What is the estimated hard copy storage volume?
What volume of material requires a vault (temperature 
controlled) environment?
Is there a list of addresses from which pick-ups will 
made?
Will the City consider expanding the requirement of 
the Company’s storage facility must be within 50 miles 
of requesting Department?



City of Charlotte | Department of General Services – City Procurement | 600 East Fourth Street Charlotte, NC 28202 | 
PH: 704.353-0776

3

Item # Page # Section # Specification Modifications and Questions
Answers:
The volume of hard copy storage is unknown.

All documents requiring storage shall meet the 
temperature requirements found in Section 3.4.2.

The list of City Departments is listed in Attachment 
One. Multiple Departments can be located at a single 
address. 

The 50-mile requirement applies only to the City of 
Charlotte Departments. Companies may take 
exception to this requirement in their proposal and 
offer a solution. 

6 17 3.5 Shredding 
Services

Service Provider Questions:
Can the City provide the following?

Location of each city facility requiring 
shredding services;
Type and quantity of bins;
Frequency of service at each facility;
Projected number purge shredding jobs and 
weight per year;
Frequency and volume of uniform shredding 
each year

Are the shredding services to be on-site or off-site?
Are there any requirements for on-site vs. off-site 
services?
Is the shredding service only for documents carried to 
the Company’s storage facility?

Answers:
The current list of participating City locations is found 
in Attachment One. Multiple City Departments are 
located at one address.

The current contracts provide 96-gallon bins, 10-
gallon bins or 36’ executive consoles. The number of 
bins is unknown.

Each department determines the frequency of service 
at their facility. It will fluctuate between monthly, bi-
monthly or as needed/call-in.

The project number of purge jobs is unknown and 
depends on the needs of the individual City 
departments. Examples include: City-wide purge day; 
annual purging of financial records; special events for 
City Council members.

The frequency and volume of uniform shredding is 
unknown. It depends on the specific department 
requesting the Service.



City of Charlotte | Department of General Services – City Procurement | 600 East Fourth Street Charlotte, NC 28202 | 
PH: 704.353-0776

4

Item # Page # Section # Specification Modifications and Questions
Shredding Services are both on-site and off-site. 
Requirements are the same regardless of the location 
of the shredding, as stated in Section 3.5.

No, Departments may choose to have shredding bins 
located in their offices and have the material shredded 
when necessary. 

7 32
Section 6 
Required 

Forms

Form 4 – Pricing 
Worksheet

Service Provider Question:
Will the City consider all-inclusive prices for scanning 
services (per image rates) and for data entry (per 
keystroke rates) to eliminate any hourly component 
related to scanning costs?

Is the Additional Services section for Services only? 
Can Companies include products as well as Services?

Answer:
The pricing worksheet is a guide for Companies to use 
when providing pricing for the requested Services. 
Company may provide pricing which matches their 
business model. 

Companies can provide both Services or products that 
would be beneficial to the City and Participating Public 
Agencies under the Additional Services.

8 37
Section 6 
Required 

Forms

Form 8 – CCPA 
Plan

Service Provider Question:
Please list the Cities in the States listed on Form 8, 
who are currently Registering Participating Public 
Agencies in the CCPA. Please provide a list of 
business names and addresses.

Answer:
The list of Participating Public Agencies in the CCPA
is found in Attachment 3. Please note that there are 
no addresses for the agencies. The Registration is per 
agency, not for individual addresses. An agency could 
have multiple addresses participating in the Services.

9 General

Service Provider Questions:
What state agencies are currently signed up as part of 
the cooperative?

Can a Company only submit supplementary Services 
as part of their proposal?

What digital platforms are currently used by the City?

Will Departments be able to pick and choose which 
vendor they wish to use?

Is the RFP for a Document Management System?

What City Departments are participating on the 
Evaluation Committee?

Answers:
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The list of participating agencies under the current 
contracts is found as Attachment 2. The list for all 
participating agencies is found as Attachment 3. 

Yes, Companies may submit a proposal for one 
Service; all Services or supplementary Services. The 
evaluation team will determine if these Services are 
needed.

City Departments use various digital platforms, such 
OnBase, SharePoint, Tyler Content Management.

The City will award to multiple vendors, allowing 
Department to choose the Company they wish to use. 
Departments may reach out to the awarded 
Companies to provide quotes for special projects 
when needed.

No, the City is looking for Companies to provide 
different Document Management Services, such as 
Record Storage, Scanning, and Shredding. The RFP 
is NOT for a Document Management System.

The following City Department will be involved on the 
Evaluation Committee: Charlotte Water, Police, 
CATS, Finance, Human Resources and Airport.

In order to constitute a complete proposal response you must acknowledge receipt of this addendum with the 
Addenda Receipt Confirmation Form in Section 6 of the RFP in your Proposal. Any Company not acknowledging 
receipt of an issued addendum may not be considered.

In the event additional changes or clarifications to this RFP are warranted, all Companies are responsible for 
monitoring the City’s Contract Opportunities site or www.ips.state.nc.us or for additional addenda.

We appreciate your interest in doing business with the City and look forward to receiving a Proposal from your 
company.

Sincerely,

Tracey Keyes
Procurement Officer

cc: RFP Team
RFP File
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ATTACHMENT ONE
LIST OF CITY OF CHARLOTTE DEPARTMENTS

DEPARTMENT ADDRESS
CITY OF CHARLOTTE 600 E 4th St
City of Charlotte 125 N. Myers Street
City of Charlotte 2145 Suttle Ave
City of Charlotte 2550 West Blvd
City of Charlotte 2730B Rozzelles Ferry Rd
City of Charlotte – Community Relations 700 Parkwood Ave
City of Charlotte - Charlotte Comm Dept 600 E 4th St
City of Charlotte - Street Maintenance 6001 General Commerce Dr
City of Charlotte -Charlotte Fire Logistics 1501 N Graham St
City Of Charlotte Asset Recovery & Disposal 5550A Wilkinson Blvd
City of Charlotte City Attorney Office 600 E 4th St
City of Charlotte Police Activity 812 Oaklawn Ave
City of Charlotte Police/Fire 1517 N Graham St
CITY OF CHARLOTTE Solid Waste Services 1105 Otts St
City Of Charlotte Water Dept 5730 General Commerce Dr
City Of Charlotte Water Dept 4100 W Tyvola Rd
City Of Charlotte Water Dept 12131 Park Rd
City Of Charlotte Water Dept 11609 Hord Dr
City of Charlotte Water-McDowell WWTP 9401 Neck Rd
City Of Charlotte- CDOT 600 E 4th St
City Of Charlotte- Charlotte Water 5100 Brookshire Blvd
City Of Charlotte- Finance Off 600 E 4th St
City Of Charlotte- Finance Office 2035 Patton Ave
City of Charlotte- Revenue Dept 600 E 4th St
City Of Charlotte- Risk Management 301 S McDowell St
City Of Charlotte-Fleet Shop 4600 Sweden Rd
City Of Charlotte- City of Charlotte 600 E 4th St
City Of Charlotte-Charmeck 311 10101 Claude Freeman Dr
City Of Charlotte-City Clerk Office 600 E 4th St
City Of Charlotte-Real Estate 600 E 4th St
City Of Charlotte-Eng & Property Mg 600 E 4th St
City Of Charlotte- Fleet Management 1105 Otts St
City Of Charlotte- Fleet Shop 1031 Atando Ave
City Of Charlotte- Fleet Shop 829 Louise Ave
City Of Charlotte- Fleet Shop 900 W 12th St
City Of Charlotte- CDC 5550 Wilkinson Blvd
City Of Charlotte-Finance Dept-10Th 600 E 4th St
City Of Charlotte-Human Resources 700 E 4th St
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City Of Charlotte-Innovation & Tech 600 E 4th St
City Of Charlotte- Housing & Neighborhood Srvcs 600 E Trade St
City Of Charlotte-Police 10430 Harris Oak Blvd
City Of Charlotte-Police 1118 Beatties Ford Rd
City Of Charlotte-Police 119 E 7th St
City Of Charlotte-Police 1330 Spring St
City Of Charlotte-Police 2550 West Blvd
City Of Charlotte-Police 1770 Shopton Rd
City Of Charlotte-Police 3505 Central Ave
City Of Charlotte-Police 4045 N Tryon St
City Of Charlotte-Police 4150 Wilkinson Blvd
City Of Charlotte-Police 5727 N Sharon Amity Rd
City Of Charlotte-Police 601 E Trade St
City Of Charlotte-Police 715 N Wendover Rd
City Of Charlotte-Police 8050 Corporate Center Dr
City Of Charlotte-Police 8315 Byrum Dr

City Of Charlotte-Police
8401 University Executive Park 
Dr

City Of Charlotte-Risk Mgt Vehicle 2725 Beam Rd
City Of Charlotte-Storm Water 600 E 4th St
City Of Charlotte-Street Maintenance 4411 Northpointe Industrial Blvd
City Of Charlotte- Charlotte Water 5100 Brookshire Blvd
City Of Charlotte- Charlotte Water 4222 Westmont Dr
City Of Charlotte- Charlotte Water 12400 north tryon street
City Of Charlotte- Charlotte Water 4000 Westmont Dr
City Of Clt- McAlpine Waste Water 12701 Lancaster Hwy
City Of Clt-Franklin Water Treatmen 5200 Brookshire Blvd
CHARLOTTE FIRE DEPT - ADMINISTRATIO 500 Dalton Ave
Charlotte Police Arson Division office 1517 N Graham St.
Charlotte Police 1750 Shopton Rd
Charlotte Police - Independence Division 9315 Monroe Rd
Charlotte Police - Court Liason 832 E. 4th St, Ste 4520
CDOT Operations 3701 Craig Avenue
City of Charlotte Water Dept. - Sugar Creek 
WWTP 5301 Closeburn Rd
CLT - Charlotte Douglas Airport 5601 Wilkinson Blvd




















